
 

 

CITY OF LAKE SAINT LOUIS 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE/ 
PUBLIC WORKS 

JOINT WORK SESSION 
 

MARCH 3, 2014 
 
The Board of Aldermen for the City of Lake Saint Louis, Missouri met in an 
Administrative/Finance/Public Works Joint Work Session on Monday, March 3, 
2014 at 5:30 p.m. in the Board Room, 200 Civic Center Drive, Lake Saint Louis, 
Missouri. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Alderman Schweikert, President of the Board, was present and presided over the 
meeting in the Mayor’s absence.  Aldermen present were; John Pellerito, Ward 
III; Kathy Schweikert, Ward II; Richard Morris, Ward III; Gary Torlina, Ward I;  
Tony Zito, Ward I; and Karen Vennard, Ward II.  Also present were: Paul 
Markworth, City Administrator; Donna Daniel, City Clerk; Steve Schertel, 
Community Development Director; Derek Koestel, Public Works Director; Mike 
Force, Police Chief; and Renee Roettger, Finance Director. 

 
Curb Inlet Program Update 
 
Derek Koestel, Public Works Director, gave a power point presentation 
and answered questions about the Curb Inlet Program.   
 
The Board held a general discussion about the Curb Inlet Program.  
Comments included: 
 

• Alderman Zito asked for a report showing the time employees 
spend on each street. 
 

• Alderman Morris asked how many employees are scheduled to 
clean one inlet drain.  Mr. Koestel replied one or two employees.  

 
• Alderman Morris noted he can clean an inlet drain in 5 minutes.   

Alderman Morris said staff mentions cigarette butts in their 
report, but what about fast food trash, cups and bags, etc.    He 
asked if staff is trying to get out of installing more grates.  If it 
takes staff this long to clean an inlet drain, how long does it take 
them to perform snow removal services. 
 

Derek Koestel, Public Works Director, said it took approximately one to 
one-and-a-half hours for his staff to clean seven (7) inlets. 



CITY OF LAKE SAINT LOUIS 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE/ 
PUBLIC WORKS 

JOINT WORK SESSION 
 

MARCH 3, 2014   
    

 

Alderman Morris asked staff to prepare an ordinance to keep trash lids 
and trash enclosure doors closed.  Alderman Morris expressed his 
opinion that we should make Wal-Mart add curb inlet screens on their 
property also.  A lot of the trash is generated from their site. 
 
Mr. Koestel discussed the City’s clean water ordinance, noting this 
legislation applies to all future developments. 
 

 Alderman Pellerito said, “Yes, more screens/covers or bars will be 
installed in the future.  The Green Environmental Advisory Committee 
is not recommending we end the program.”   Mr. Koestel added, “We 
will install 27 more by the end of spring.” 

  
 Alderman Zito asked staff whether experience shows this to be an 

effective program.  Mr. Koestel said the answer is subjective, 
depending on what you want to accomplish.  It’s marginally effective 
and useful as long as the screens, etc., don’t cause flooding issues.  
Alderman Zito said it appears they may be more effective in the 
autumn when leaves are falling.  He also asked whether the Public 
Works Department has equipment to vacuum leaves. Mr. Koestel 
replied, “No, but it is something we have considered.” 

   
 Alderman Schweikert asked how we could require Wal-Mart to add 

covers on the storm sewers if it wasn’t part of the approved 
Development Plan.  Steve Schertel, Community Development Director, 
said we could add this requirement to new projects, but if we want to 
require screens on private property, we should discuss that with the 
City Attorney. 

  
 Alderman Vennard asked staff to contact businesses located at the 

Shoppes at Hawk Ridge and ask them to clean/police their property to 
the curb, and to remind them to keep lids on trash receptacles and to 
close trashcan enclosures.  

 
 Steve Schertel, Community Development Director, said the City has an 

Ordinance that requires trash lids and trash enclosure doors to be 
closed.     

  
 Alderman Morris said then the City should ask Wal-Mart to add bars or 

screens to their curb inlets.  
 



CITY OF LAKE SAINT LOUIS 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE/ 
PUBLIC WORKS 

JOINT WORK SESSION 
 

MARCH 3, 2014   
    

 

Ellis Drive Snow Plowing   
 
Derek Koestel, Public Works Director, gave a brief slide presentation to 
staff and the City Attorney on his research leading to the opinion that 
Ellis Drive is a private street. 
 
The Board held a general discussion about Ellis Drive.  Alderman 
Pellerito and Alderman Torlina said they would follow up with the 
residents on Ellis Drive to inform them that this street is private and the 
City cannot provide snow-plowing services.  Paul Markworth, City 
Administrator, asked that they also inform the residents that there is a 
process to dedicate a private street to the City, and he would be able 
to explain the process if they are interested. 
 
Alderman Morris expressed his opinion that we should provide snow-
plowing services on Ellis Drive.  
 
Alderman Vennard disagreed, noting the Aldermen have taken an oath 
to follow Ordinances of the City and the Constitution (of the United 
States and the State of Missouri). 
 
2013/14 Mid-Year Budget 
 
Mr. Markworth said he and Renee Roettger, Finance Director, have 
reviewed the 2013/14 Mid-Year Budget and recommend increasing the 
revenues in the General Fund by $254,518.  Mr. Markworth explained 
staff’s recommendations which include: 

 
• Increasing the sales tax revenue $208,000 
• Transferring $300,000 General Fund to Capital Project Fund for 

street improvements 
• Transferring $100,000 to the Sick Leave Retirement Account 
• Increasing Missouri Gas and Vehicle Rebate $28,000 
• Increasing Court Fine $20,000 

 
The Board held a general discussion about the 2013/14 Mid-Year 
Budget.  Alderman Zito asked staff to provide a report comparing the 
revenues and expenditures for the funds during the past three (3) to six 
(6) years. 
 



CITY OF LAKE SAINT LOUIS 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE/ 
PUBLIC WORKS 

JOINT WORK SESSION 
 

MARCH 3, 2014   
    

 

 Texting Prohibited While Driving 
 
Alderman Pellerito said he drafted the Bill which would prohibit texting 
while driving for over 21 years of age, noting the under 21 years of age 
are already prohibited by state law.  He went on to say that this Bill 
does not prohibit telephone calls or use during an emergency.  This 
legislation is long overdue and is necessary for safety and to bring 
awareness that this activity needs to stop.  
 
The Board held a general discussion.  Comments included: 
 

• Alderman Torlina asked why we don’t prohibit use of cell 
phones while driving 
 

• Alderman Schweikert and Alderman Zito asked if there was a 
problem prohibiting this activity at the municipal level when it is 
not prohibited by state law 

 
• Alderman Vennard suggested we make it simpler - prohibit in 

school zones or parks and consider expanding the scope down 
the road  

 
Mike Force, Police Chief, said this will be tough to enforce.  His officers 
need probable cause to detain or investigate this violation.  Chief Force 
agreed that it would bring awareness to the problem and we should 
discuss this with the press and at schools and churches. 
 
General Discussion  
 
The Board agreed to move the “Private Street Snow-Plowing 
Reimbursement” item to the next Work Session Agenda.  Staff was 
asked if Jeff Kramer has a Business License. 
  

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board in the 
Administrative/Finance/Public Works Joint Work Session, the meeting adjourned 
at approximately 6:50 p.m. 
 
____________________________   
Donna F. Daniel, City Clerk  


